
 
 

Please ask for: 

Lisa Young 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk 
 

29 March 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Regulatory Board 
DATE: 6 April 2022 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor,  Councillor Hook  (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board, Councillor Burgess (ex-Officio) 

 
Councillor Mrs Hook (Chairman) 
Councillor Casey (Vice-Chair) 

 

Councillor Mrs Batty 
Councillor Carter 
Councillor Earle 
Councillor Foster-Reed 
Councillor Hammond 
 

Councillor Mrs Jones 
Councillor Miss Kelly 
Councillor Mrs Morgan 
Councillor Murphy 
Councillor Westerby 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Regulatory Board 
6 April 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of Interest   

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2022 (Pages 1 - 8)  

 To sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 2 March 2022. 
 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 4 April 2022. The total time 
for deputations in favour and against shall not exceed 10 minutes) 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
4 April 2022) 
 

 

6.   Report of the Development Manager (Pages 9 - 28)  

 Reports of the Development Manager.  
 

 

7.   Any Other Items   



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 2 MARCH 2022 

 
 
Councillor Burgess (subsituting for Councillor Jones)  
 
Councillors Mrs Hook, Casey, Mrs Batty, Carter, Earle, Hammond, Miss Kelly, Mrs Morgan, 
Murphy and Westerby 
 
 
104. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
An apology for non attendance was receive from Councillor Mrs Jones.  
 
105. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Casey declared a non percuniary interest in the grey pages, agenda item 4 and 5 
– No 2. Battery, Stokes Bay Road and that he would leave the room and take no part in the 
discussion or voting.  
 
Councillor Burgess advised that in relation to the urgent item, he was a County Councillor  
 
106. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 JANUARY 2022  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 12 January 2022 be signed as a 
true and correct record.  
 
107. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
Deputations were received on;  
 
Main agenda item 6 -22/00064/HCC3 – County Consultation – Regulation 3- Construction 
of a new replacement Bus Station on land adjacent to the Falklands Gardens at Mumby 
Road  
 
Grey Pages  
21/00066/FULL – 35 Pannall Road  
21/00540/FULL – 23 Kensington Road  
 
A late deputation request was received on the late agenda item.  
 
108. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
109. 22/00064/HCC3 - COUNTY CONSULTATION - REGULATION 3 - CONSTRUCTION 

OF A NEW REPLACEMENT BUS STATION ON LAND ADJACENT TO 
FALKLANDS GARDENS AT MUMBY ROAD GOSPORT TOGETHER WITH A 
REPLACEMENT TAXI RANK AND ANCILLARY FACILITIES INCLUDING SHORT 
STAY CAR PARKING AND PICK-UP AND SET DOWN FACILITIES 
LAND AT THE EXISTING GOSPORT BUS STATION AND ADJACENT TO THE 

Agenda Item 3



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

2 

ESPLANADE AT FALKLAND GARDENS SHORT STAY CAR PARK MUMBY 
ROAD GOSPORT PO12 1AD  

 
22/00064/HCC3 - COUNTY CONSULTATION - REGULATION 3 - CONSTRUCTION OF A 
NEW REPLACEMENT BUS STATION ON LAND ADJACENT TO FALKLANDS GARDENS 
AT MUMBY ROAD GOSPORT TOGETHER WITH A REPLACEMENT TAXI RANK AND 
ANCILLARY FACILITIES INCLUDING SHORT STAY CAR PARKING AND PICK-UP AND 
SET DOWN FACILITIES 
LAND AT THE EXISTING GOSPORT BUS STATION AND ADJACENT TO THE 
ESPLANADE AT FALKLAND GARDENS SHORT STAY CAR PARK MUMBY ROAD 
GOSPORT PO12 1AD 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager requesting that 
consideration be given to a planning consultation received from Hampshire County for a 
planning application to provide a replacement bus station on land adjacent to the Falklands 
Gardens.  
 
Councillor Cully as ward councillor advised that the proposal had been a long time coming. 
Concern had been expressed by the residents at the potential relocation for the taxi rank 
and expressed concern that noise from the buses would disturb residents.  
 
Residents had expressed concern that the uniqueness of the tall buildings presented their 
own noise issues.  
 
It was hoped that enough parking spaces would remain for disabled pick up and drop off 
and parking close to the High Street would still be sufficiently available with the buses 
crossing North and South Cross Street.  
 
Concern had been express about the level of disruption the proposal would cause and 
hoped that construction time periods would be limited to minimalise this. It was also hoped 
that there would be a sufficient traffic management plan to counteract any disruption.  
 
Councillor Mrs Cully advised the Board that concerns had been made with regard to raised 
bricks and the change of surface at access points and that the new road lay out would need 
to be correctly communicated.  
 
It was also acknowledged that the siting of the compound in Coates Road needed to be 
correctly communicated and that the Coastal Partnership were aware of the proposal and 
were taking appropriate action if necessary.  
 
Councillor Mrs Cully advised that the need for the proposal was recognised and that the 
majority of people were in support of the proposal as long as it was managed correctly, 
causing minimal disruption.   
 
A Member suggested that a speed limit of 5mph be imposed on vehicles crossing the High 
Street via North and South Cross Streets. Officers advised that this would fall outside of the 
scope of the consultation on the planning application but undertook to feedback this request 
to relevant Officers at the County Council 
 
RESOLVED: The Borough Council supports the proposals for the replacement transport 
interchange and recommends that conditions are imposed in relation to ecological 



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

3 

mitigation and enhancement, hard landscaping details, tree replacement, land 
contamination, a construction management plan and traffic management measures. 
 
  
 
110. K.15000/1 - LAND AT CHERQUE FARM, CHERQUE WAY, 

LEE-ON-THE-SOLENT;  
13/00231/FULL - POOLES PEUGEOT, CAMP ROAD, 
GOSPORT (NOW KNOWN AS ROSEMARY TERRACE AND THYME CLOSE); AND  
14/00369/VOC - LAND NORTH OF MANOR WAY & WEST OF BAYNTUN 
DRIVE/REDMILL DRIVE AT HMS DAEDALUS (NOW KNOWN AS AERIAL CLOSE, 
CATALINA CLOSE AND COCKERELL CLOSE, LEE-ON-THE-SOLENT) 
  

 
K.15000/1 - Land At Cherque Farm, Cherque Way, Lee-on-the-Solent;  
13/00231/FULL - Pooles Peugeot, Camp Road, 
Gosport (now known as Rosemary Terrace and Thyme Close); and  
14/00369/VOC - Land North of Manor Way & West of Bayntun Drive/Redmill Drive at HMS 
Daedalus (now known as Aerial Close, Catalina Close and Cockerell Close, Lee-on-the-
Solent) 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager seeking authorisation to 
modify the legal agreements made pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) for the developments at Cherque Farm, Cherque Way, 
Lee-on-the-Solent; the former Pooles Peugeot site, Camp Road, Gosport; and Land North 
of Manor Way & West of Bayntun Drive/Redmill Drive at HMS Daedalus, Lee-on-the-Solent. 
The request has been submitted under S106A(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended). 
 
RESOLVED: That the Board grant delegated authority to the Borough Solicitor, in 
consultation with the Development Manager, to modify the wording of the Mortgagee in 
Possession clause(s) of the Section 106 Agreements for planning permissions 
13/00231/FULL and 14/00369/VOC and to provide Mortgagee in Possession clause in 
respect of the Section 106 Agreement for planning permission K.15000/1. 
 
 
111. LATE ITEM -  CONSULTATION FROM FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 
The report was not available at the time of the publication of the agenda, but the item was 
agreed to be considered as a late item as a result of the deadline for consultation 
responses being before the next Board.  
 
Councillor Philpott was invited to address the Board and advised as follows.  
 
Thank you to you and to your committee for giving me the opportunity to speak on this item, given 
the short notice.  
 
I am very angry.  Not with this Board or with Fareham Borough Council.  I am angry with these 
developers because this is the fourth planning application submitted for house building on Newgate 
Lane in less than three years.  The previous three applications were all refused by Fareham 
Borough Council - the latter was also refused by this Board.  All three applications went to appeal 



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

4 

with the first two being lost and the third, for 99 houses, with access directly onto Brookers Lane, 
being approved.   
 
Now we have a fourth application.  This time for a further 375 houses.  In November just gone the 
Developer conducted their own consultation and 96% of respondents said they did not want this 
development.   
 
Fareham Council's existing Local Plan as well as their emerging Plan - due to go before its 
Examination in Public next week - both identify this land as Strategic Gap and not a housing 
allocation site.  What part of "no" do these people not understand? 
 
I want to support this excellent report, but I would want to add a couple of observations for this 
Board and the Officers to consider. 
 
Firstly, the Report, rightly, describes the most recent planning application for 99 houses that was 
accepted on appeal.  However, in my view, of equal importance are the two previous applications - 
for 115 and 75 houses - that also went to appeal, but were refused.  The opinions of that Inspector, I 
would argue, to some extent apply to this application for 375 houses. 
 
Secondly, I would like to speak about the National Planning Policy Framework.  I will return to this in 
a moment. 
 
And thirdly, the Partnership for South Hampshire have been clear time and again in their support for 
strategic gaps generally and, specifically,  for this particular part of the Strategic Gap. 
 
Reading the Officer's Report it seems to me that the first priority is to defeat the Developer's 
objection to the exclusion of this land as a housing allocation site.  The Report explains that, should 
the Inspector be minded, he could decide to change the status of the land.  If he does this, we are 
told, there will be a six week consultation period.  In my view, the Local Plan should be viewed as a 
whole and to pick off pieces of it for amendment - especially something of such scale - would 
undermine the entire planning process. 
 
Paragraph 15 of the National Planning policy Framework says, 
 
'The planning system should be genuinely plan-led' 
 
If the Inspector were to seek to amend Fareham Council's Local Plan at the Examination stage, 
after it has gone through several stages of public consultation, it would make a mockery of the 
process and it could not be argued that the process was "plan-led". 
 
Paragraph 16 says,  
 
'Plans should......be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers 
and communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and operators and 
statutory consultees.' 
 
Fareham's emerging Local Plan has been through several rounds of Regulation 18 consultation and 
has completed its journey through Regulation 19.  For the Inspector to make amendments at the 
EiP stage would, I would argue, be a breach of paragraph 16 of the NPPF.  
 
Paragraph 20 of the NPPF says, 
 
'Strategic policies should set out an overall strategy for the pattern, scale and design quality 
of places, and make sufficient provision for housing'. 
 
And Paragraph 23 expands on this point: 



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

5 

 
'Strategic policies should provide a clear strategy for bringing sufficient land forward, and at a 
sufficient rate, to address objectively assessed needs over the plan period.....This should include 
planning for and allocating sufficient sites to deliver the strategic priorities of the area'. 
 
Fareham Borough Council will argue that they have identified sufficient sites to meet their housing 
need over the Plan period.  The land in question is NOT a housing allocation site and, in line with 
the NPPF, there is no justification for it to be redesignated. 
 
Were the objection at EiP stage by the Developer to fail the application will proceed in any case for 
consideration by Fareham's Planning Committee.  If the Inspector decides not to amend the Plan at 
Examination stage this planning application will be a hostile and speculative application. 
 

Thanks you again for allowing me to address the Board. 
 
Members agreed with the recommendation and expressed frustration at the short turn 
around in date for response.  
 
The Board was advised that the developer felt that the exclusion of the land from Fareham 
Borough Council’s Local Plan was incorrect and that it should be included. If the Inspector 
examining Fareham’s draft Local Plan were minded to include the site as a residential 
allocation this would require additional consultation to which GBC would be able to make 
further representations.  
 
It was requested that all Members be advised of the consultation to allow them all to 
respond and perhaps the consultation should be considered by full Council. The Board was 
advised that the response of the Regulatory Board would be on behalf of the full Council.  
 
 
RESOLVED:  

 1: Raise objection in the strongest possible terms on the following grounds for the reasons 
set out in Section 2 of this report:  
a. The proposed development is contrary to Fareham Borough Council’s adopted Local Plan 
(Parts 1 and 2) for a number of reasons including that:  

 the development is outside the settlement boundary and is located within the Strategic 
Gap.  

 the proposal introduces a new access onto Newgate Lane East with potential detrimental 
impacts on the local highway network  
 
b. The proposed development is contrary to Fareham Borough Council’s emerging Fareham 
Local Plan 2037 (FLP2037) which has been submitted to the Government and will be subject 
to an Examination in Public, commencing on the 8th March.  
2: Delegated authority is given to the Development Manager to expand upon these 
recommendations and to include any further detailed development management 
observations.  

 
112. REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER  
 
21/00066/FULL - ERECTION OF TWO-STOREY DETACHED DWELLING (as amended 
by plans received 01.12.21) 
35 Pannall Road Gosport PO12 4PP 
 



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

6 

Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager on application 
21/00066/FULL.  
 
Mr Lloyd was invited to address the Board. He advised that he was aware that a complaint 
about the application from 33 Pannall Road  and advised that their property had originally 
requested planning permission for a skylight, but instead had a window that overlooked the 
proposed development at 35. He advised that the proposal would not have been an issue if 
the skylight had been installed.  
 
He also advised that the frontage of the two properties was 32.7 metres wide and 6.5 
metres deep and for both properties the driveway would 16 metres plus the garage.  
 
The applicant advised the Board that he not made the contribution with regard to the 
nitrates as he had been advised not to unless the planning application was approved.  
 
In answer to a Member’s Question the Board was advised that the window in question had 
been installed in the original property of 33 Pannall Road and that this had taken place prior 
to 2008 and the current permitted development rules. It was a lawful window as had been in 
place for more than four years and should therefore be considered as when considering the 
application for development at 35. 
 
The Board was advised that a previous application had been submitted for a 4 bedroom 
property but that this had been reduced to a 3 bedroomed property.  
 
RESOLVED: That application 21/00066/FULL be refused for the reasons set out in the 
report of the Development Manager.  
 
21/00540/FULL- ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE / REAR EXTENSION 
(RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION) 
23 Kensington Road, Gosport Hampshire, PO12 1QY 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing application 
21/00540/FULL.  
 
The Board was updated that an additional letter of representation had been received from 
an existing objector following the publication of the agenda and it raised the issues of the 
loss of light to 25, that retrospective applications are an abuse of the planning process and 
that there was a concern about lack of supervision with respect to Building Regulations  
 
Councillor Mrs Cully was invited to address the Board. She advised that she was aware of 
the proposal and expressed concern that rubble from the site had been dumped on the 
shore of Haslar Lake and acknowledged that the issue of signing off the completed 
extension lay with building control.  
 
Councillor Mrs Cully advised the board that there was concern that the finish of the building 
was poor. There had been a change in the owner of the property and there was a large 
number of items outstanding before the building could be signed off.  
 
It wasn’t clear whether the property would have cladding, what had been undertaken to the 
chimney breast and the consideration of the proximity of the extension to the neighbouring 
property and the loss of light to their kitchen as a result.  



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

7 

 
It was believed that the builder that had constructed the site was no longer accessible and 
that there should be a formal approach to ensure that the extension, the roof structure, the 
chimney breast, the brickwork and the fireplace were all safe and completed satisfactorily.  
 
It was also believed that there were issues with the downpipe and the fire safety. All of 
which had been raised with building control.  
 
A Member sought clarification on the footprint of the driveway and it was advised that the 
boundary to application site, between 23 and 25 Kensington Road was 1.5m.  
 
Members empathised with the concerns around the quality of the building, but 
acknowledged that it was building regulations that determined the sign off of a building and 
that the issues were not planning considerations, nor could they be conditioned as part of 
the planning application.  
 
RESOLVED: That application 21/00540/FULL be approved subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Development Manager. 
 
21/00415/FULL - CHANGE OF USE FROM DOCTORS SURGERY (CLASS E) TO FORM 
4NO. ONE BED FLATS AND 4NO. TWO BED FLATS (CLASS C3), ERECTION OF 
ADDITIONAL STOREY TO FORM THIRD FLOOR AND ERECTION OF PART TWO-
STOREY / PART FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION, INSTALLATION OF WINDOWS ON THE 
SIDE ELEVATIONS, PROVISION OF 8NO. PARKING SPACES AND STORAGE FOR 14 
CYCLES WITH ASSOCIATED REFUSE STORES 
139 - 141 Brockhurst Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3AX     
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager considering application 
21/00415/FULL.  
 
Members question the parking provision as part of the development, as there were already 
issues in the surrounding roads with overspill parking. The Board was advised that there 
was provision for 8 car parking spaces and 14 cycles and that movement to the site would 
be less than in its previous use as a doctor’s surgery.  
 
The Board were also advised that the building currently had E1 use and therefore could 
also have far greater vehicle movements as it covered a wide range of uses. It was 
acknowledged that it was best practice to follow the SPD but that it would be difficult to 
produce evidence that the application was not acceptable if there was an appeal.  
 
Members accepted that this was a brownfield site and that development was needed and 
that this was a site that was suitable for such development.  
 
It was confirmed that the proposal was for flats and not a House of Multiple Occupation.  
 
Members questioned whether there should be provision for electric car charging points 
however it was recognised that such cars were not the natural choice for people yet.  
 
RESOLVED: That application 21/00415/FULL be approved subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Development Manager  
 



Regulatory Board 
2 March 2022 

 

8 

21/00615/FULL - ALTERATIONS TO ENTRANCE INCLUDING ACCESS RAMP, 

HANDRAIL AND STEPS AND INSTALLATION OF TIMBER DOOR WITHIN EXISTING 

OPENING (Listed Building) 

No 2 Battery  Stokes Bay Road  Gosport  Hampshire     

 
Councillor Casey declared a personal interest and left the room and took no part in the 
discussion or voting.  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager on application 
21/00615/FULL.  
 
Members recognised the uniqueness and importance of the museum and recognised that 
improved accessed would be beneficial.  
 
RESOLVED: That application 21/00615/FULL be approved subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Development Manager.  
 
21/00616/LBA - LISTED BUILDING APPLICATION - INSTALLATION OF TIMBER DOOR 
WITHIN EXISTING OPENING, ALTERATIONS TO ENTRANCE INCLUDING INTERNAL 
ACCESS RAMP, PLATFORM LIFT AND HANDRAIL AND REPAIRS TO GUN 
ENPLACMENTS 
No 2 Battery  Stokes Bay Road  Gosport  Hampshire     
 
Councillor Casey declared a personal interest and left the room and took no part in the 
discussion or voting.  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager on application 
21/00616/LBA . 
 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the conditions in the report of the 
Development Manager.  
 
 
113. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
The Board was advised that a MIB would be sent shortly with the outcome of an appeal.  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 7.00 pm 

 
 



Regulatory Board Agenda :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 1 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD  
 
6th April 2022 
 
ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. Copies of drawings and accompanying planning applications referred to in this schedule will 

be made available for inspection by Members from 5.00 pm immediately prior to the 
meeting.  Unless otherwise advised, these plans will be displayed in the room in which the 
Regulatory Board is to be held. 

 
2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the 

time the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this 
date, these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation. 

 
3. Copies of all representations received from the public will be made available for inspection 

by Members in the same way as drawings will be made available, referred to in Note 1 
above. 

 
4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with 

a summary of each recommendation. 
 

Agenda Item 6



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 2 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
INDEX 

Item Page 
No 

Appl. No. Address Recommendation 

 
 

01. 03-12 21/00470/FULL 127 High Street  Gosport  
Hampshire  PO12 1DU     

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
02. 13-16 22/00087/FULL 27 Privett Place  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO12 3SG     
Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 3 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 01.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00470/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr Mark Smith  Kingfisher Property Group Ltd 
DATE REGISTERED: 21.09.2021 

 
ERECTION OF TWO STOREY BUILDING WITH ACCOMMODATION IN THE ROOF TO 
FORM 7NO. FLATS AFTER DEMOLITION OF EXISTING TWO STOREY BUILDING AND 
PART OF GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION, ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING TWO STOREY 
BUILDING AND FLAT WITH PART HIPPED/PART FLAT ROOF AND DORMER 
EXTENSIONS, INSTALLATION OF BALCONIES AND WINDOWS IN SIDE ROOF SLOPE, 
CREATION OF LANDSCAPED COURTYARD AND 4NO. PARKING SPACES AND 
REDUCTION OF FLOOR SPACE OF EXISTING GROUND FLOOR SHOP (CLASS E) 
(Conservation Area) (as amended by plans received 15.02.2022) 
127 High Street  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1DU     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. This application relates to a two storey building located on the southern side of High Street, 
within the High Street Conservation Area. At ground floor level, the property is occupied by M&Co, 
a retail premises operating within Class E. Stores for the Class E use are located to the rear of the 
existing unit. The site is accessed to the rear from Coates Road. At first floor level on the frontage, 
the building has sliding sash windows, a bricked elevation with a parapet roof, but the space 
behind at first floor level is an inaccessible void. Adjoining the site are three storey buildings that 
extend to the same height as 127 High Street. Adjoining the site to the east are the Grade II Listed 
Buildings 125/126 High Street that have residential flats at first and second floor level.   To the rear 
of the site is a detached two storey building that is used as part of the storage area of the Class E 
unit and this allows access to the roof.  
 
2. The northern wall of the existing stock room appears to be constructed of remains of the Old 
Theatre to the rear of 125 & 127, both Listed Buildings. The northern wall of the stockroom has a 
central door set back within an arch with large arched window apertures each side that would 
appear to have been the entrance to the auditorium. These are covered internally within M&Co and 
is only visible from a gap between this and the adjoining site when viewed from the roof. The 
eastern flank wall has blocked window and door apertures visible from the outside, seen as historic 
painted brickwork internally. As these walls appear to form remnants to the former theatre, they 
have historic interest as the listed buildings directly in front (125 and 126 High Street) were 
formerly the theatre manager's house and booking office, to which the remains of this former 
building relate.  
 
3. Planning permission is sought for the erection of new build two storey building with 
accommodation in the roof to form 7 flats after demolition of existing two storey building and part of 
ground floor extension, alterations to existing two storey building and flat with part hipped/part flat 
roof and dormer extensions, installation of balconies and windows in side roof slope, creation of 
landscaped courtyard and 4 car parking spaces and reduction of floor space of existing ground 
floor shop (Class E).  
 
4. The new build two storey would replace the existing storage space that is sited adjacent to 
Coates Road and would accommodate 7 flats. The flats would vary in size and there would be four 
1 bed, two person flats at 50m2 and three, 2 bed, four person flats at 70m2. The new build 
frontage on Coates Road would be set back from the back edge of the footway by some 6.6m. It 
would occupy the full width of the site at some 15.8m extending to 2.5 storeys in scale. However, 
at ground floor level on the western side of the site, an underpass would be constructed that would 
be 3.4m wide and 2.8m high and would taper along the western boundary of the site, allowing 
access for refuse, cycle, pedestrian and separate servicing access. Four car parking spaces would 
be provided, with the end spaces 2.85m wide and central spaces 2.5m wide. All spaces would be 
5m deep with a 0.85m separation from the back edge of the spaces to the footway. In front of the 
parking spaces, an area of planting 0.75m deep would be provided. Externally, the two storey new 
build would be  6.2m to the eaves and 9.15m to the ridge of the twin gable fronted pitched roof. 
The proposed two storey building would have a flat crown to its roof that would be 8.7m high and 
be sited behind the gables. The roof slope between the gables would be set back by some 2.1m 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 4 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

from the gable frontage and would provide a roof terrace area for the flats at this level. The first 
floor side elevations of the two-storey new build would be windowless with roof lights in the side 
roof slope. At ground floor level on the western elevation, several doors would be inserted. On the 
northern (rear) and southern (front elevation with Coates Road), roof terraces would be installed.  
 
5. The existing Class E unit is split between 335m2 of shop floor space and 116m2 of storage and 
this would be reduced in size to 104m2 of shop/storage floor space (separate shop/storage areas 
have not been divided on the proposed floor plans). The applicant has provided a commercial 
statement to justify this reduction. Separate refuse storage would be provided in the rear of this 
unit along with an external escape and service door. The existing ground floor frontage with High 
Street would remain unchanged. The existing first floor void above the shop front would be altered 
to form an additional flat but over two floors, although the roof form would not be visible from High 
Street - this part of the development  would be 6.2m deep, 4.2m to the eaves and 5.8m to the 
ridge.  On the roof slope, there would be two pitched roof dormers and behind this leading to the 
existing parapet of the shop would be a flat roof. This flat would be accessed via an external 
staircase that would traverse the flat roof of the retained Class E unit and there would be a 
distance separation of some 17.9m from this part of the development to the two-storey building 
accommodating 7 flats. Along the eastern boundary, the staircase would be 11m deep and on the 
northern boundary it would be 4.45m wide.  
 
6. A ground floor flat (no.2) would have access to a small private amenity area with a separate 
shared amenity space serving all the other units (the flats at first and second floor level would also 
have roof terraces) would be provided adjacent to the staircase that would allow access to unit 
above the Class E unit.  
 
7. The originally summited plans and supporting documents have been amended during the 
lifetime of the application. The changes to the plans can be summarised as:- 
- retained and incorporated the existing northern wall of the stock room, featuring the theatre door 

and archway into the proposal  
- revised layout of the flat above the retained shop floor to develop into the existing first floor void. 

The south elevation of this flat has been amended to be more residential in nature with dormer 
windows and dark timber effect cladding 

- amended ground floor layout of the flats to include stores for bicycles and increased the size of 
the bin store 

- increased the symmetry of the front elevation by moving windows to align with those on the floors 
above where possible and increasing the depth of the roof storey balconies to set this element 
further back from the street 

- planting bed provided in front of the four car parking spaces in response to comments from the 
Crime Prevention Officer 

- submission of a commercial statement in relation to the reduction in floor space of the Class E 
unit. 

 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
Nil 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP2  Infrastructure 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP4  The Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 
 LP10  Design 
 LP11  Designated Heritage Assets including Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

and Registered Historic Parks & Gardens 
 LP12  Designated Heritage Assets: Conservation Areas 
 LP16  Employment Land 
 LP22  Accessibility to New Development 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 5 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 LP24  Housing 
 LP27  Principal, District and Neighbourhood Centres 
 LP28  Uses in Centres 
 LP39  Water Resources 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance 
 LP46  Pollution Control 
 LP47  Contamination and Unstable Land 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Waterfront and Town Centre:  Supplementary Planning Document:  

March 2018 
 Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol April 2018 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 
 
Particular obligations fall upon the Local Planning Authority in determining any application which 
might affect a listed building or its setting or a Conservation Area. Section 66 of The Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990 (as amended) places a duty on the authority to have 
"special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses". Section 72 of the same act requires 
that the authority pay: "special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 
or appearance of a conservation area". 
 
Consultations 
  
 Hampshire Fire And Rescue Service No objection - consultation required through 

Building Regulations. 
  
 Natural England No objection subject to appropriate 

ecological mitigation. 
  
 Crime Prevention & Design No objection subject to a condition to reduce 

opportunities for anti-social behaviour. 
  
 HCC Ecology No objection subject to ecological 

enhancement conditions. 
  
 Local Highway Authority No objection subject to a separate dropped 

crossing application and clarity on the 
proposed access. 

  
 HCC Landscape Planning & Heritage No objection subject to a planning condition 

to secure an archaeological watching brief. 
  
 Building Control 1. The cycle store should be relocated away 

from the single escape stairway. 
2. There should be no fire risks such as bin 
stores or window/door opening within 1.8m 
of the escape stairway for Flat 6. 
3. Access for the Fire |Service should meet 
the requirements of Regulation B5, or 
consideration should be given to providing 
Fire Mains. 

  
 Streetscene Waste & Cleansing No objection subject to a planning condition 

to secure refuse/recycling bins. 
  



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 6 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 The Gosport Society Objection on the following grounds:- 
- the second floor of the proposal would be 
unsympathetic to the design of the Old 
Auction House and would be 
overdevelopment 
- sectional drawings would further 
understanding of the proposals 
- the proposed rear elevation does not align 
with the other elevations. 

 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
Nil 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The main issues are whether: the proposal is acceptable in principle, design, amenity, 
parking/highways and ecology terms.  
 
2. The principle of providing additional dwellings within the urban boundary area of Gosport, which 
the site is within, is established by Policies LP1 and LP3 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 
2029, subject to compliance with other policies: Policy LP24 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011 - 2029 encourages a range of dwelling sizes to meet the needs of existing and future 
residents and the floor areas would comply with the minimum standard in the Nationally Described 
Space Standards and would accord with the requirements of Policy LP24 Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011 - 2029  in respect of dwelling types. 
 
3. The site is located within the Urban Area Boundary and designated Town Centre where Policies 
LP4 and LP28 and paragraph 85(f) of the National Planning Policy Framework encourage the use 
of uppers floors for residential purposes. The Waterfront and Town Centre SPD promote the 
provision of additional dwellings in the Town Centre. The principle of both the conversion of the 
existing building and the construction of additional floors to provide further flats are therefore 
acceptable in principle, subject to compliance with other policies in the Local Plan. 
 
4. Policy LP28 also requires that any upper floor residential development: 'does not affect the 
function (including servicing) of any commercial units; does not have a detrimental effect on 
adjoining uses; and, includes separate independent and appropriate access to serve the residential 
accommodation'. In this case the existing first floor has separate access points to both the front 
and rear of the site that are suitable for residential access and separate storage of refuse. The 
proposal would not have an impact on the operation of existing neighbouring uses. The proposal 
would introduce a need to provide facilities for the storage of cycles and waste. The submitted 
plans indicate that these would be provided to the rear of the shop unit in an area of hardstanding 
that currently serves as the service area for the shop. The cycle and bin storage facilities shown 
are adequate to meet the needs of the proposal. The plans also detail an area of storage for the 
retail unit. The proposal would comply with Policy LP28 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 
2029.  
 
5. The applicant has provided a commercial statement that indicates M&Co and other High Street 
retailers are trying to reduce the amount of floor space they lease due to cost and competition from 
the online market and other services, such as hairdressers, tattooists, charity shops and 
takeaways. A smaller unit would increase the viability of M&Co retaining their presence on the High 
Street. Although the proposal would result in a significant reduction in the retail floor space, this is 
comparable with other applications on the High Street and in Gosport and this part of the proposal 
would not conflict with Policy LP28 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
6. The proposed flats vary in size but meet the minimum sizes set out in the Design SPD and the 
Nationally Described Spaces Standards published by Central Government. Each of the dwellings 
would have suitable access to light, outlook and privacy and would provide an acceptable living 
standard and would accordance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 7 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

7. The overall scale of the development and the increase in building bulk would be comparable to 
other developments in the wider High Street and would be compliant with the Gosport Waterfront 
and Town Centre SPD. The use of materials, window style, size and placement would be in 
keeping with contemporary additions in this part of the High Street Conservation Area. The dual 
gable end feature that would be visible from Coates Road would be reflective of more historic 
forms of development along the High Street. Subject to a condition to secure specific details on the 
building materials, including external railings and staircases and means of enclosure, the overall 
design in terms of scale, siting and appearance of the development would be acceptable and 
would preserve the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and would preserve the 
setting of the Listed Buildings, in accordance with Policies LP10, LP11 and LP12 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
8. The proposal would retain the historic theatre door and archway that are important to the history 
of this site that would otherwise be lost and the amendment to the proposal to allow their retention 
as part of this proposal is welcomed and should be secured by planning condition. The County 
Archaeologist has indicated that the level of ground disturbance for the foundations could reveal 
potential ground level archaeology/finds that may reveal some of the early settlements of Gosport. 
The applicant has agreed to the imposition of a pre-commencement condition in relation to 
archaeology and this would accord with Policy LP11 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 
2029.  
 
9. The proposal includes an element of soft landscaping at ground floor level in proximity to Coates 
Road and at first and second floor level between the new build extension and the flat above the 
Class E unit. Although some details have been provided, these are insufficient to require their 
implementation given these would visually soften the external appearance of the building, a 
condition is required to secure these details prior to occupation of the flats. On this basis, the 
proposal would accord with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
10. The Crime Prevention Officer has indicated that the underpass has the potential to attract anti-
social behaviour and to mitigate this high level lighting should be installed along the external 
access rough, toughened laminated glass for ground floor units, in addition to an access control 
system. As the reduction of crime and the safety of future residents is an important factor in the 
overall design of the scheme, it is considered that an above slab level condition is required to 
minimise the risk to future residents from the risk of crime and anti-social behaviour. Subject to this 
condition, the proposal would accord with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 
2029 and paragraph 91 of the NPPF.  
 
11. The applicant has submitted a sun study that tracks the existing and proposed light changes 
throughout the year. Although the development would have some impact on the occupiers of the 
adjoining properties with regards to loss of light and outlook, the existing site is already in a degree 
of shadow and it is not considered that the impact of the proposed development would be 
significant and in this respect, the proposal would accord with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
12. The adjoining unit 128 High Street has an extraction unit at first floor level on an area of flat 
roof. This extraction unit generates a degree of noise that is audible from the roof of the application 
site. To reduce potential noise and disturbance from this unit on future residents and to prevent a 
harmful impact on the operation of the business, a pre-commencement condition to secure noise 
mitigation is required. As the operating hours of 128 High Street may change in future, the noise 
assessment should be carried out during both day/night time. Subject to this condition, noise could 
adequately be mitigated and would protect future occupiers and the business use at 128 High 
Street in accordance with Policies LP10 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
13. The Design SPD recommends that the design and layout of residential development should 
ensure that reasonable visual privacy is provided for the residents within dwellings. Spacing 
between dwellings should allow for satisfactory space around the building to be provided to prevent 
cramped and congested layouts. Where properties face one another, across a street or public 
space, the Design SPD does not recommend a minimum distance separation and each case 
should be determined on its own merits.  
 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 8 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

14.  With the new build two storey element of the proposal and the flat above the Class E unit, 
there would be a distance separation of some 17.7m across an area of flat roof and proposed 
residential garden and 18m with 128 High Street. At first floor level with the adjoining flats (nos. 
125/126), there would be a distance of 16.3m from the part of the development on the eastern 
boundary, decreasing to 15m with the part of the development that would be sited over the 
underpass. In terms of loss or privacy, three of the five windows at first/second floor level on the 
northern elevation of the new build storey element closest to 125/126 High Street would serve 
bedrooms with two central windows serving the staircase. The distance separation and the limited 
size and siting of the windows on the northern elevation is considered sufficient to prevent a 
significant impact in respect of loss of privacy to 125126 High Street. A condition could be imposed 
requiring the staircase windows to be obscure glazed.  
 
15. The proposal includes four off-road car parking spaces that would meet the minimum width and 
depth requirements outlined in the Parking SPD. There would be a shortfall of 0.15m from the back 
edge of the parking spaces to the footway and this shortfall could be reduced by removing the 
defensive planting, suggested by the Crime Prevention Officer from Hampshire Constabulary. 
However, given the passive surveillance benefits of having ground floor windows in this location 
and the low speed of Coates Road and the good visibility, it is considered that on balance, the 
retention of the defensive planting and the 0.15m shortfall would be acceptable, and the proposal 
would not conflict with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
16. The supporting information from the applicant also indicates that the highly accessibly and 
sustainable nature of the site within the Town Centre would give future occupiers easy access both 
to public transport and to a wide range of services and amenities. Given the aspiration of the Local 
Plan to provide increasing housing in the Town Centre and having regard to its location very close 
to a range of local shops, services, public car parks and public transport, it is considered that four 
parking spaces are sufficient and any shortfall would not give rise to any demonstrable harm in 
amenity or highway terms. The proposal would therefore not conflict with Policy LP23 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029 or with the Parking SPD. 
 
17. The submitted drawings indicate the provision of facilities for the storage of bicycles in a secure 
and weatherproof area. To ensure these details are provided and they are suitable for future 
residents, a planning condition could be imposed to secure the submission of these details prior to 
the occupation of the unit and this would accord with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011 - 2029 and the Parking SPD.  
 
18. To ensure suitable and separate servicing requirements are provided and maintained 
throughout the lifetime of the development, a condition could be imposed to secure refuse and 
recycling bins prior to the occupation of the flats / amended Class E unit and this would accord with 
Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029. 
 
19. The Local Highways Authority have requested that a condition be imposed to secure details of 
the access arrangements. Given that the development is considered to be acceptable and a 
dropped crossing application would require a separate application, these details could be secured 
by a suitably worded planning condition and this would accord with Policy LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029. 
 
20. Due to the proximity of neighbouring properties and the close proximity of Portsmouth Harbour 
Special Protection Area, the demolition and construction is likely to give rise to increased dust and 
dirt during works. For these reasons, it is considered necessary to secure details on how the 
construction and environmental impact of the development would be managed. The importance of 
the High Street in serving businesses and homes also results in the necessity to reduce the impact 
on the local highways network and parking. Subject to this condition, the proposal would comply 
with Policies LP42 LP44, LP46 and LP47 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
21. The proposal would introduce new dwellings which are likely to result in increased recreational 
activity on the coast and a consequential impact on the protected species for which the Portsmouth 
Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and the Chichester and Langstone 
Harbours SPA are designated. To address this impact, a contribution towards appropriate 
mitigation, in accordance with the Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol, is required and 
can be secured prior to the occupation of the dwelling under a Legal Agreement. The applicant has 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 9 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

agreed to provide mitigation in accordance with the Protocol, such that the proposal would comply 
with Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
22. Natural England have raised concerns that new dwellings are causing increased levels of 
nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment in the Solent with evidence that these 
nutrients are causing eutrophication at European and internationally designated habitat sites and 
additional mitigation measures would be required to offset any increases in nitrogen discharges 
that would result from the proposals. Natural England advise that proposals for new residential 
development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to these sites and the calculation 
has been undertaken to confirm the level of mitigation required. 
 
23. The proposed approach is one of land use off-setting whereby the increase in 3.9Kg nitrogen 
per year at the site is offset by a corresponding reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the 
subcatchment. It is a requirement that the change in use at the mitigation site is legally secured in 
for the lifetime of the development and that necessary maintenance to ensure the new low nitrogen 
usage is also secured. In this instance the land indicated as available is in the Meon Valley and will 
be owned and managed by H.N. Butler Farms Ltd once removed from agricultural use and for the 
lifetime of the development. The applicant has made a financial contribution to the H.N. Butler 
Farms Ltd. to an equivalent level to offset the amount of nitrogen produced by the development 
(nitrogen budget).   
 
24. Natural England has reviewed the Appropriate Assessment and are satisfied with these 
proposed mitigation measures. The full details of these measures would be secured by planning 
condition, along with securing measures limiting water usage within the properties to 110ltr per 
person per day. This is an acceptable approach to mitigating the proposed development and as 
such it would not cause harm to European and internationally designated protected sites in 
accordance with Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
25. Policy LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 requires appropriate development 
to provide bio-enhancements, such as bird and bat boxes. Subject to a condition to secure these 
details, the development would comply with Policy LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
28102-PD100D - Proposed Site Plan  
28102-PD102F - Proposed Ground and First Floor Plan  
28102-PD103C - Proposed Second Floor Plan  
28102-PD104F - Proposed Elevations  
Bat Survey Report Version: 001 prepared by aLyne ecology, dated 07.09.2021 
Preliminary Inspection for Bats Version: 001 prepared by aLyne ecology, dated 26.05.2021 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  a) No development shall commence until a Construction Traffic Environmental Management 
Plan (CTEMP) for the demolition and construction of the development, hereby permitted, has been 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The development must be carried out in accordance with the approved details for the duration of 
the works. 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 10 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

Reason - To safeguard the amenity of occupiers of adjoining properties, highway and pedestrian 
safety, the character and appearance of the area and to prevent pollution in accordance with 
Policies LP10, LP22, LP44, LP46 and LP47 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the 
NPPF. 
 
 4.  a) Before the development hereby permitted commences a scheme specifying the provisions to 
be made for the protection of flats from noise emanating from the adjoining site to the west shall be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority 
b) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied or brought into use until the noise 
mitigation scheme approved pursuant to part a) of this condition has been implemented. 
c)  The noise mitigation measures shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby premises, and to comply with Policies 
LP10 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 5.  a) No development shall be carried out until the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological work has been secured in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) 
which has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved WSI.  
Reason - To ensure that any archaeological remains encountered are recognised, characterised 
and recorded and to comply with Policy LP11 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 6.  a) Development above slab level shall not commence until biodiversity enhancement measures 
(to include a minimum of two built-in bat and two built-in bird bricks for Common Swifts), have been 
provided in accordance with plans and details that shall first be submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The approved biodiversity enhancement measures shall be permanently retained thereafter. 
Reason - To ensure that biodiversity enhancements are provided as part of the development in 
accordance with Policy LP41 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011-2029. 
Reason - To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance  with the Conservation Regulations 
2010, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act 2006, NPPF and with Policy LP44 of the 
of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 7.  a) Construction above slab level shall not commence until details of all external facing and 
roofing materials, shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory, and to comply 
with Policies LP10 and LP12 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 8.  a) Development above slab level shall not commence until details of security lighting, defensive 
planting, building access arrangements and building security have been submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The details approved in part a) of this condition, shall thereafter be installed and retained in 
accordance with approved details. 
Reason - In order to protect the amenities of the area and to reduce anti-social behaviour and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2019.  
 
 9.  The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until: 
a) a water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation 
Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which 
demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within 
the development, and this calculation has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority; and, 
b) a mitigation package demonstrating that any additional nutrient input arising from the 
development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European Sites, has 
been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
c) the water efficiency and nutrient mitigation measures have been implemented in accordance 
with the details approved under a) and b) of this condition. 
Reason: To prevent increased discharge of nitrogen into the water environment of European 
designated nature conservation sites in The Solent to comply with the Conservation of Habitats 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 11 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

and Species Regulations 2017 and Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029. 
 
10.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until secure and weatherproof 
long-term cycle storage facilities and secure short stay cycle parking facilities have been provided 
in accordance with a detailed scheme that shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
b) The cycle storage and parking facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In order to ensure that adequate cycle storage is provided to promote and encourage 
cycling as an alternative to use of the private motor car in compliance with Policy LP23 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
11.  The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied or brought into use until the footway 
crossing and/or verge crossing shown on the approved plans has been constructed in accordance 
with a detailed scheme that shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety, and to comply with Policy LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 
 
12.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until facilities for the storage and 
collection of refuse and recyclable materials generated by the development and Class E use have 
been provided in accordance with a detailed scheme that shall be submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The waste storage and collection facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To ensure that adequate provision is made for the storage of refuse and recyclable 
materials and to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
13.  The window on the North Elevation (New Building) at first and second floor level serving the 
staircase; shall be glazed with obscured glass to a minimum of Level 4 of the Pilkington scale (or 
any other equivalent as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) and shall be 
non-openable below a distance of 1.7 metres above the finished floor level and permanently 
retained in that condition.  
Reason - To preserve the amenities of the occupiers of 125/126 High Street and to comply with 
Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
14.  The theatre doorway and archway on the northern elevation of the storeroom as shown on 
permitted plan 28102-PD102F Proposed Ground and First Floor Plan; shall be retained and not 
infilled with brickwork, render, fencing, or other means or enclosure and/or building materials.  
To preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and to comply 
with Policies LP10 and LP12 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 





Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 13 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 02.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 22/00087/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr Marcus White   
DATE REGISTERED: 16.02.2022 

 
ERECTION OF GABLE BUILD UP AND FRONT AND REAR DORMER WINDOWS 
27 Privett Place  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3SG     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The site is located on the west side of Privett Place and comprises the northern house in a pair 
of two-storey dwellings. The property is primarily brick and has a two-storey bay window on its front 
elevation. It has a single storey flat roof extension to the rear and a driveway to the northern 
boundary.   
 
2. The surrounding area is primarily residential with many similar style properties, although, many 
of the properties have been extended in a variety of ways.  Number 25 is located to the south and 
is attached to the application property and has a flat roof extension on the rear. Number 29 is 
located to the north and is separated from the site by its driveway and has a flat roof extension with 
a roof lantern on the rear.  The rear gardens of the properties extend westwards and beyond this 
are the playing fields of Bay House. There are a mix of hipped and gable properties, and one 
existing front dormer window at number 37, a bungalow, in close proximity to the site. Number 5 
Privett Place, has a gable build up and large rear dormer window and there are other examples of 
rear dormers within the street.  
 
3. The proposals are indicated as being for the erection of dormer windows on the front and rear 
and a gable build up.  The front dormer window would be approximately 3m wide and 1.7m high 
and located over the existing two-storey bay window.  It would be set off of the southern boundary 
by 0.5m and 4m from the northern boundary. It would be 1.1m from the eaves and 0.2m to the 
ridge.  The gable build up would be constructed with matching facing brick.  The rear dormer 
window would be 2.4m high, 6.7m wide and be set down from the ridge by 0.2m and up from the 
eaves by 0.4m. The dormers would be finished in matching tiles. Having regard to the provisions of 
Schedule 2, Class B of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
(England) Order 2015 (as amended), the proposed gable build up and rear dormer window, even 
when adding in the volume of the proposed front dormer window would not exceed the permitted 
allowances.  Given this, notwithstanding their inclusion in the application, the proposed gable build 
up and rear dormer window could be erected without planning permission. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
22/00002/FULL - erection of gable build up and front and rear dormer windows - withdrawn 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP10  Design 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 
 
 
Consultations 
  
 Nil  



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 14 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
7 letters of objection 
Issues raised: 
- impinges on right of light 
- loss of privacy 
- this new amended application has not addressed concerns 
- the dormer windows front and back and the gable end extension would look incompatible with 
surrounding houses  
- would unbalance the symmetry of the pair 
- the roof line is not in keeping with other properties in the road 
- lack of parking, with additional demand generated and the road is currently very congested in the 
evenings  
- would set a precedent for future planning applications which isn't in keeping with the road as a 
whole 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. As noted above the proposed rear dormer window could be constructed without planning 
permission.  Whilst included within this application, given this fall-back position any issues relating 
to their design, unbalancing of the pair's symmetry, or relationships to neighbours are not 
considered to be material to the decision, as these works could be undertaken irrespective of any 
concerns raised under this application. Each application should be considered on its merits and the 
approval on one property does not guarantee that a similar approach would be taken elsewhere in 
the future. The number of bedrooms is not shown to increase so there is no additional parking 
demand as a result of these proposals. However, even if there were an increase, given the fall-
back of the rear dormer which could create an additional bedroom without permission, this would 
not be a significant material consideration in any event. The main issues are, therefore, the 
acceptability of the design of the front dormer window, the impact it will have on the visual amenity 
of the local area and the impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties. 
 
2. Whilst the front dormer would be the first on the two-storey properties, this in itself is not a 
reason to refuse this application. The design of the front dormer window, is appropriate to the scale 
of the dwellinghouse and will not dominate the front roof slope, being a subservient addition set off 
of the side boundaries and eaves.  Its proposed location, situated directly over the existing bay 
window will provide some vertical alignment on the elevation and overall its design is acceptable. 
The use of matching materials as shown on the plans is appropriate and the proposals would be 
an appropriate addition to the property and would not harm the character and appearance of the 
area. Given the existing relationships with neighbouring properties, and with views across the 
public highway, the front dormer window will not result in harmful loss of privacy, nor given its 
position would it have a harmful impact on light or outlook to the neighbouring occupiers.  
Therefore, the proposal is in compliance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
27 Privett Place - Location Block Plan A3 Rev.0; 27 Privett Place - Plng Elev.Plans DWG A1 Rev.1 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 



Regulatory Board :  6th April 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-29.03.22 Page 15 of 15 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
 3.  The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture those on the existing dwelling 
unless otherwise agreed, in writing, with the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 



This page is intentionally left blank



PH

24 to 28

1 to 3

Burney

PO

2

H
all

LBs

Portland House

Presbytery

44

12710

13

37

117

36

TCB

N
O

R
T

H
 C

R
O

S
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

(PH)

34

4.0m

1 to 11

Hobbs Court

120

Burnham's Walk

11

7

12

13
1a

to

to

38

8 to 12

17

116
2

21

Shelter

Burnham's Walk

42

136

11
1 7

Place Of Worship

14

11

18

1

83

2

Nelson

1 to 11

19

118

Bank

22 to 41

1

1

TCB

140

1 to 11

W
is

e
s  A

l le
y

111

O
u

r L
ad

y

91

Precinct

House

Club

to

Posts

4 to 7

4.6m

17 to
 2

2

House

25

Court

4.6m

132

PH

6

HIGH STREET

A
sh

b
y P

la
ce

Gosport Shopping

COATES ROAD
137a

128

CHURCH PATH

Wises

11 to
 21

Hotel

10

Car Park

30
1 

to
 8

32

Winchfield

19

5

Rodney House

WAY

O
ld

 A
u

ct
io

n
 H

o
u

s
e

20 to 24

43

Bank

ESS

1 to 11

to

13
 to

 1
6

113

35

Oyster

138

Bank

(S
t M

ar y' s) R
C

 C
h

u
rch

York House

11
a

1

1

26 to 27

130

92

28 to 29

11
6a

Car Park

36

S
t M

a
ry 's

8a

1 to 11

House

20

NORTH STREET

o
f th

e
 S

ac
red

 H
e

art

Car Park

8

ESS

24

1 to 11

45 to 46

4

THORNGATE

30

11
b

33

NORTH C
ROSS S

TREET

House

133

42

S
O

U
T

H
 C

R
O

S
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1250Gosport Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank



1

18

120

4

17
a

El Sub Sta

Yard

52
56

15

16

124

L Twrs

Football Ground

122

40

WILMOTT CLOSE

47

Stone

Shelter

112

18

63

H
O

U
S

E
 F

A
R

M
 R

O
A

D

19

102

110

66

126

26

39

Builders

P
R

IV
E

T
T

 P
L

A
C

E

120a

17

49

2

2

7

29

1

S
ta

n
d

s

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1250Gosport Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2022
	6 Report of the Development Manager
	Item 1 - site plan
	Item 2 - 27 Privett Place - site plan


